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(Goldman Sachs
Global Funds - Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder)

2022
43,734,839.37 100.58
250,675.59 0.58
43,484,163.78
( 5,943 ) 100.00
2022 30
136.68 2022 30

142.67
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2021 2022
GS

2021 70,837,784 9,682,108 110.43 15,094 137.41 19,604 4,266
68,834,427 9,408,289 110.85 15,151 138.56 19,768 4,287

65,209,347 8,912,814 107.39 14,678 136.72 19,506 4,218

10 63,022,309 8,613,889 106.30 14,529 135.54 19,337 4,267

11 57,903,626 7,914,268 104.16 14,237 136.54 19,480 4,163

12 56,634,260 7,740,771 105.44 14,412 137.31 19,590 4,274

2022 55,980,569 7,651,424 105.69 14,446 139.11 19,847 4,287
52,273,230 7,144,705 99.33 13,576 130.48 18,616 4,027

50,202,558 6,861,686 97.61 13,341 129.43 18,466 4,170

45,018,836 6,153,175 92.36 12,624 129.52 18,479 4,260

45,341,134 6,197,226 94.47 12,912 130.06 18,556 4,278

43,484,164 5,943,416 90.16 12,323 127.18 18,145 4,312
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2021 2022

18.71

7.84

0.51

100x
2022
2021
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2021 2022 2022
14,855 22,046 144,418
(14,855) (22,046) (144,418)
2 8,723 25,741
0 (8,723) (25,741)
0 26,845 185,025
©) (26,845) (185,025)
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76

23 103

2022 30
136.68
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2022 31
2022 31 2021 11 30
() 45,552,232 6,226,079 58,083,226 7,938,815
13 356 49 365 50
17,506 2,393 10,764 1,471
28,339 3,873 514,726 70,353
- - 1,783 244
45,598,433 6,232,394 58,610,864 8,010,933
- - 2,914 398
28,553 3,903 512,626 70,066
1,472 201 1,643 225
30,346 4,148 40,018 5,470
6,576 899 9,039 1,235
30,346 4,148 40,018 5,470
1,138 156 1,501 205
14,891 2,035 7,368 1,007
9,790 1,338 19,922 2,723
34,553 4,723 - -
71,680 9,797 42,797 5,849
27,954 3,821 29,392 4,017
257,299 35,168 707,238 96,665
10 45,341,134 6,197,226 57,903,626 7,914,268
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2022 31
2022 31 2021
) 4,230,611 578,240 6,018,915 822,665
(6,636,323) (907,053) (9,674,502) (1,322,311)
(2,115,221) (289,108) 4,198,118 573,799
(4,520,933) (617,921) 542,531 74,153
9,973 1,363 9,972 1,363
207,340 28,339 350,778 47,944
17,692 2,418 21,239 2,903
207,340 28,339 350,778 47,944
7,775 1,063 13,157 1,798
14,272 1,951 15,068 2,059
9,874 1,350 10,293 1,407
38,978 5,328 42,135 5,759
28,883 3,948 31,852 4,354
31,119 4,253 24,467 3,344
573,246 78,351 869,739 118,876
(85,999) (11,754) (45,409) (6,207)
487,247 66,597 824,330 112,669
(5,008,180) (684,518) (281,799) (38,516)
11 1,318,104 180,158 3,237,836 442,547
1,318,104 180,158 3,237,836 442,547
(6,326,284) (864,676) (3,519,635) (481,064)
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2022 31 2021 31
57,903,626 7,914,268 98,036,038 13,399,566
332,663 45,468 1,379,364 188,531
(6,568,871) (897,833) (16,676,306) (2,279,318)
(6,326,284) (864,676) (3,519,635) (481,064)
45,341,134 6,197,226 79,219,461 10,827,716
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2011

2013 48
€)) 2019

10

(a
102 102

102 1990

102

102
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(b
(c
(d
102
(a 102 11 12
(b
39 39
11 12 (c
11 12 39
11 12

39
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2022 31

2022 31 2021 11 30

1997 739

(a

(b

102 34
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102
2022 31
45,552,232 45,552,232
45,552,232 45,552,232
2021 11 30
58,083,226 58,083,226
58,083,226 58,083,226
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9,973 2021 31 9,972

0.80
207,340 2021 31

2.5

31 85,999
31 45,409
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13,157

15,068

31
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17,692
21,239
0.80
0.03
207,340 2021 31 350,778
7,775 2021 31
14,272 2021 31

31 2021 31
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2022 31 2021 31
(6,636,323) (9,674,502)
(6,636,323) (9,674,502)
(2,115,221) 4,198,118
(2,115,221) 4,198,118
100 100 10,000
2021 12 2022 31
137,213 573 (6,176) 131,610
34,056 2 (8,127) 25,931
197,125 (11,067) 186,058
9,433,177 86,611 (1,424,100) 8,095,688
9,801,571 87,186 (1,449,470) 8,439,287
2020 12 2021 31
179,050 43 (25,838) 153,255
38,635 (3,530) 35,105
219,775 (7,123) 212,652
15,777,882 344,501 (3,290,422) 12,831,961
16,215,342 344,544 (3,326,913) 13,232,973
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10
2022 31
12,433,771 944746
3,372,461 130.0569
795,992,382 4,278.1846
23,107,103 2.8542
2021 11 30
14,292,275 104.1614
4,649,919 136.5394
820,680,093 4,163.2517
31,149,605 3.3021
2021 31
17,152,428 111.9205
4,759,176 135.5695
921,392,083 4,332.8724
47,891,446 3.7322
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11
2022 31
2021 12 15 2021 12 20 0.03 273,294
2022 18 2022 21 0.03 268,582
2022 15 2022 18 0.03 265,943
2022 15 2022 18 0.03 261,507
2022 19 2022 22 0.015 126,187
2022 16 2022 19 0.015 122,591
2021 31
2020 12 15 2020 12 18 0.04 613,088
2021 15 2021 21 0.04 600,063
2021 16 2021 19 0.04 563,591
2021 15 2021 18 0.04 547,108
2021 15 2021 20 0.04 524,773
2021 17 2021 20 0.03 389,213
12
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20
2.2 2.2 )
2.1 2.1 )
2.1 2.1 )
2.0 (2.0 )
2.0 (2.0 )
9.1 1)
19.5 (19.5 )

2021 31

20

2.7 2.7 )
2.0 (2.0 )
2.0 (2.0 )
1.8 (1.8 )
1.8 (1.8 )
10.6 (10.6 )
20.9 (20.9 )
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50bps 125bps
50bps 125bps 0.50
1.25
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2022 31
75bps 2021 11 30 75bps
75bps 2021 11 30 75bps

2022 31

0.6 ) 0.6

0.4 ) 0.4

0.4 ) 0.4

0.4 ) 0.4

0.4 ) 0.4

1.3 ) 1.3

(3.5 ) 3.5
2021 31

0.7 ) 0.7

0.7 ) 0.7

0.4 ) 0.4

0.4 ) 0.4

0.3 ) 0.3

1.7 ) 1.7

4.2 ) 4.2
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10
2022 31
3.87 2021 11 30 3.69
10
2022 31 2021 11 30
49.77 52.51
49.07 46.38
1.16 1.11
100 100

2022 31
2021 11 30
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2022 31 2021 11 30

2022 31 2021 11 30

2022 31 2021 11 30
45,552,232 58,083,226
356 365
17,506 10,764
28,339 514,726
1,783
45,598,433 58,610,864
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2022 31

100.47

2021 11 30

100.31

«

100
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(
2019 2088
13
2022 31 2021 11 30
) ) 356 0.00 365 0.00
356 0.00 365 0.00
(a
(b
14
102
15

26
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16

2022 31 2021 11 30

0.933489 0.888415

128.645000 113.545000

17
2022 31 2021 11 30

18
2022 31 2021 11 30

19
2021 12 10

20

30
2019
11 27 2019/2088
2022 31

21
2022 31

22

23
2022 12
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2022 31

25,448,174 @ 45,552,232 100.47
45,552,232 100.47
45,552,232 100.47

2022 31 2021 11 30
45,552,232 100.47 58,083,226 100.31
(211,098) 0.47) (179,600) (0.31)
45,341,134 100.00 57,903,626 100.00
99.90 99.10
0.10 0.90
100.00 100.00

(a
(b
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2022 31

1,117,368,134 152,721,877
36,166,327 4,943,214
31,247 4,271
16,028,361 2,190,756
9,042,072 1,235,870
3,290,510 449,747
5,124,858 700,466
8,857,753 1,210,678
43,599,388 5,959,164
149,271 20,402
69,081 9,442
19,954,502 2,727,381
2,105,134 287,730
571,435 78,104

2,976 407
1,262,361,049 172,539,508
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1,591 217
10,450,000 1,428,306
28,556,071 3,903,044

269,795 36,876
8,572,323 1,171,665
7,247,703 990,616
4,704,743 643,044

26,472,367 3,618,243
1,949,926 266,516
1,733,460 236,929
224,480 30,682
592,301 80,956
90,263 12,337

212,223 29,007

2,680 366

63,270 8,648

21,507 2,940

17 2

35,377 4,835

10,584 1,447

3,900 533

29,467 4,028

28,894 3,949

1,175 161

44,618 6,098

10,961 1,498

13,101 1,791

51,598 7,052
91,394,395 12,491,786
1,170,966,654 160,047,722
1,170,966,654 160,047,722
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2022 31

143,829 19,659
29,557,617 4,039,935
1,272,628 173,943
5,217,735 713,160
154 21
36,191,963 4,946,718
6,857 937
4,089,415 558,941
289,407 39,556
140,173 19,159
18,721 2,559
45,495 6,218
71,840 9,819
11,505 1,573
74,394 10,168
4,724 646
8,601 1,176
5,371 734
16,868 2,306
3,282 449
15,804 2,160
10,761 1,471
23,374 3,195
54,992 7,516
4,891,584 668,582
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4,891,584 668,582
380,317 51,982
30,920,062 4,226,154
(24,669,010) (3,371,760)
3,333,654 455,644
(64,871,741) (8,866,670)
668,696 91,397
6,058,922 828,133
(79,479,479) (10,863,255)
(95,935,508) (13,112,465)
177,664 24,283
(39,875) (5,450)
21,847,371 2,986,099
5,490,931 750,500
(1,312,263) (179,360)
(69,771,680) (9,536,393)
(118,331,097) (16,173,494)
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2022 31

1,574,361,223 215,183,692
123,183,127 16,836,670

(375,326,042) (51,299,563)

(118,331,097) (16,173,494)

(32,920,557) (4,499,582)

2022 31 1,170,966,654 160,047,722
1,170,966, 654 160,047,722
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2022 31
@ () ( )
80.67

2,830,000 Benin Government International Bond EUR 4.950 22/01/2035 2,289,697 0.19
110,000 Benin Government International Bond EUR 6.875 19/01/2052 91,902 0.01
2,381,599 0.20
260,000 Tengizchevroil Finance Co. International Ltd. usb 2.625 15/08/2025 229,661 0.02
870,000 Banco do Brasil SA(®) Usb 6.250 Perp. 805,457 0.07
164,055,000 Brazil Letras do Tesouro Nacional BRL 12.908 01/07/2022 34,529,941 2.95
273,627,000 Brazil Letras do Tesouro Nacional BRL 12.997 01/01/2024 47,933,668 4.09
146,643,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10.000 01/01/2025 30,753,735 2.63
60,666,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 12.432 01/01/2027 12,363,311 1.06
74,558,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10.000 01/01/2029 14,788,288 1.26
12,867,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10.000 01/01/2031 2,493,320 0.21
200,000 BRF SA usb 5.750 21/09/2050 151,725 0.01
143,819,445 12.28
280,000 Huarong Finance 2019 Co. Ltd. usb 3.375 24/02/2030 230,081 0.02
310,000 Huarong Finance 2019 Co. Ltd. UsD 3.625 30/09/2030 256,268 0.02
240,000 Huarong Finance 11 Co. Ltd. usb 4.875 22/11/2026 234,600 0.02
720,949 0.06
1,410,000 Cameroon International Bond EUR 5.950 07/07/2032 1,215,922 0.10
210,000 China Aoyuan Group Ltd. UsD 5.880 01/03/2027 43,131 0.00
1,660,000 DP World Salaam(®) usb 6.000 Perp. 1,673,747 0.14
200,000 [IHS Holding Ltd. UsD 5.625 29/11/2026 183,500 0.02
200,000 [IHS Holding Ltd. UsD 6.250 29/11/2028 184,500 0.02
340,000 Meituan UsD 2.125 28/10/2025 306,085 0.03
360,000 Sunac China Holdings Ltd. UsD 6.650 03/08/2024 61,200 0.00
2,452,163 0.21
7,015,000,000 Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos CLP 4.500 01/03/2026 8,092,471 0.69

1,320,000,000 Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos
@ CcLp 4.700  01/09/2030 1,461,631 0.12
5,145,000,000 Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos CLP 5.000 01/03/2035 5,597,024 0.48
5,350,000 Chile Government International Bond usb 2.750 31/01/2027 5,138,675 0.44
20,289,801 1.73
275,570,000 China Government Bond CNY 2.850 04/06/2027 41,772,461 3.57
93,540,000 China Government Bond CNY 3.280 03/12/2027 14,501,868 1.24
45,290,000 China Government Bond-Series 1910 CNY 3.860 22/07/2049 7,439,994 0.63
63,714,323 5.44
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2022 31

@ (b) ( )
970,000 Banco de Bogota SA usb 6.250 12/05/2026 953,207 0.08
13,044,000,000 Colombia Government International Bond Ccop 4.375 21/03/2023 3,341,147 0.29
860,000 Colombia Government International Bond usb 3.000 30/01/2030 711,953 0.06
200,000 Colombia Government International Bond usb 5.000 15/06/2045 155,765 0.01
210,000 Colombia Government International Bond usb 5.200 15/05/2049 165,731 0.01
41,586,200,000 Colombian TES-Series B CoP 6.250 26/11/2025 9,841,938 0.84
37,932,300,000 Colombian TES-Series B CoP 7.500 26/08/2026 9,099,857 0.78
46,361,200,000 Colombian TES-Series B copP 6.000 28/04/2028 9,901,368 0.85
13,123,000,000 Colombian TES-Series B CcoP 7.000 26/03/2031 2,725,871 0.23
18,206,300,000 Colombian TES-Series B CoP 7.000 30/06/2032 3,684,991 0.31
64,460,200,000 Colombian TES-Series B CoP 9.250 28/05/2042 14,231,874 1.22
54,813,702 4.68
225,220,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 100 CZK 0.250 10/02/2027 7,874,599 0.67
240,080,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 103 CZK 2.000 13/10/2033 7,978,193 0.68
365,800,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 120 CzZK 1.250 14/02/2025 14,276,267 1.22
53,700,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 125 CZK 1.500 24/04/2040 1,453,720 0.13
372,860,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 130 CZK 0.050 29/11/2029 11,492,483 0.98
103,920,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 138 CZK 1.750 23/06/2032 3,472,079 0.30
46,547,341 3.98
49,950,000 Dominican Republic International Bond DOP 8.000 15/01/2027 784,045 0.07
81,060,000 Dominican Republic International Bond DOP 8.000 12/02/2027 1,269,712 0.11
2,053,757 0.18
560,000 Egypt Government International Bond usb 8.150 20/11/2059 396,900 0.04
920,000 Egypt Government International Bond usb 7.500 16/02/2061 625,600 0.05
1,022,500 0.09
3,901,980,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 24/C HUF 2.500 24/10/2024 9,560,643 0.82
1,653,920,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 25/B HUF 5.500 24/06/2025 4,300,231 0.37
4,096,080,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 26/D HUF 2.750 22/12/2026 9,236,788 0.79
231,390,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 27/A HUF 3.000 27/10/2027 513,082 0.04
3,242,440,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 30/A HUF 3.000 21/08/2030 6,607,577 0.56
2,901,800,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 32/A HUF 4.750 24/11/2032 6,482,902 0.55
36,701,223 3.13
200,000 Adani Ports & Special Economic Zone Ltd. Usb 4.375 03/07/2029 181,796 0.01
1,040,000 Reliance Industries Ltd. usb 2.875 12/01/2032 892,783 0.08
1,080,000 Reliance Industries Ltd. usb 3.625 12/01/2052 816,680 0.07
1,891,259 0.16
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320,000 Indofood CBP Sukses Makmur Tbhk PT UsD 3.541 27/04/2032 264,800 0.02
11,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR64 IDR 6.125 15/05/2028 737 0.00
107,345,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR70 IDR 8.375 15/03/2024 7,785,292 0.66
306,457,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR71 IDR 9.000 15/03/2029 23,371,523 2.00
73,400,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR72 IDR 8.250 15/05/2036 5,335,985 0.46
124,000,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR74 IDR 7.500 15/08/2032 8,631,781 0.74
305,892,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR80 IDR 7.500 15/06/2035 21,115,170 1.80
66,505,288 5.68
180,000 Leviathan Bond Ltd.(d) usb 5.750 30/06/2023 180,900 0.02
370,000 Leviathan Bond Ltd.(d) UsD 6.750 30/06/2030 367,179 0.03
548,079 0.05
3,050,000 Ivory Coast Government International Bond EUR 5.250 22/03/2030 2,871,918 0.25
290,000 SoftBank Group Corp. usb 5.125 19/09/2027 262,812 0.02
420,000 Altice Financing SA EUR 4.250 15/08/2029 387,541 0.03
200,000 Genm Capital Labuan Ltd. usb 3.882 19/04/2031 167,575 0.01
330,000 India Green Power Holdings Usb 4.000 22/02/2027 280,500 0.02
530,000 MTN Mauritius Investments Ltd. usb 4.755 11/11/2024 527,982 0.05
808,482 0.07
220,000 Banco Mercantil del Norte SA(C) UsD 5.875 Perp. 191,441 0.01
330,000 Banco Mercantil del Norte SA(®) Usb 6.750 Perp. 315,006 0.03
490,000 BBVA Bancomer SA() usb 5.125 18/01/2033 442,776 0.04
94,333,100 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 7.750 29/05/2031 4,567,512 0.39
112,378,100 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 7.750 13/11/2042 5,170,782 0.44
161,496,300 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 8.000 07/11/2047 7,576,252 0.65
167,253,400 Mexican Bonos-Series M 20 MXN 7.500 03/06/2027 8,120,896 0.69
284,698,300 Mexican Bonos-Series M 20 MXN 8.500 31/05/2029 14,401,893 1.23
218,272,100 Mexican Bonos-Series M 30 MXN 10.000 20/11/2036 12,415,739 1.06
219,011,200 Mexican Bonos-Series M 30 MXN 8.500 18/11/2038 10,986,513 0.94
2,110,000 Mexico City Airport Trust usb 3.875 30/04/2028 1,896,363 0.16
1,190,000 Mexico City Airport Trust usb 5.500 31/10/2046 904,400 0.08
66,989,573 5.72
407,400 Greenko Dutch BV usb 3.850 29/03/2026 373,280 0.03
250,000 Lukoil Securities BV UsD 3.875 06/05/2030 133,750 0.01
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2022 31

@ (b) ( )
320,000 Metinvest BV UsD 8.500 23/04/2026 200,400 0.02
200,000 Prosus NV UsD 3.257 19/01/2027 180,000 0.02
1,100,000 Prosus NV UsD 3.680 21/01/2030 928,813 0.08
200,000 Prosus NV usb 4.027 03/08/2050 138,500 0.01
1,954,743 0.17
2,860,000 Nigeria Government International Bond usb 6.125 28/09/2028 2,341,267 0.20
390,000 Aeropuerto Internacional de Tocumen SA usb 4.000 11/08/2041 326,385 0.03
860,000 Banco Latinoamericano de Comercio Exterior SA usb 2.375 14/09/2025 802,475 0.07
1,128,860 0.10
2,820,000 Paraguay Government International Bond usb 5.000 15/04/2026 2,847,685 0.24
11,060,000 Peru Government Bond PEN 5.940 12/02/2029 2,812,835 0.24
4,955,000 Peru Government Bond PEN 6.150 12/08/2032 1,223,787 0.11
59,290,000 Peru Government Bond PEN 5.400 12/08/2034 13,355,173 1.14
24,345,000 Peru Government Bond PEN 5.350 12/08/2040 5,086,885 0.43
9,861,000 Peruvian Government International Bond PEN 6.900 12/08/2037 2,495,188 0.21
24,973,868 2.13
35,890,000 Philippine Government Bond-Series 1063 PHP 6.250 22/03/2028 695,200 0.06
76,580,000 Philippine Government Bond-Series 1064 PHP 6.875 10/01/2029 1,503,357 0.13
10,000,000 Philippine Government International Bond PHP 3.900 26/11/2022 188,256 0.01
2,386,813 0.20
74,925,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 1023 PLN 4.000 25/10/2023 17,005,264 1.45
53,750,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 1030 PLN 1.250 25/10/2030 8,401,587 0.72
29,425,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 424 PLN 2.500 25/04/2024 6,408,998 0.55
101,300,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 425 PLN 0.750 25/04/2025 20,230,563 1.73
78,310,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 428 PLN 2.750 25/04/2028 14,879,487 1.27
20,080,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 432 PLN 1.750 25/04/2032 3,085,267 0.26
57,680,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 727 PLN 2.500 25/07/2027 11,023,704 0.94
81,034,870 6.92
2,950,000 Romanian Government International Bond usb 3.000 27/02/2027 2,720,084 0.23
1,130,000 Romanian Government International Bond usb 3.625 27/03/2032 970,690 0.08
1,400,000 Romanian Government International Bond EUR 2.000 14/04/2033 1,091,987 0.10
4,782,761 0.41
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1,292,350,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6220 RUB 7.400 07/12/2022 1,389,070 0.12
437,100,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6221 RUB 7.700 23/03/2033 469,813 0.04
977,300,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6222 RUB 7.100 16/10/2024 1,050,442 0.09
616,025,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6223 RUB 6.500 28/02/2024 662,129 0.06
306,100,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6224 RUB 6.900 23/05/2029 329,009 0.03
1,911,140,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6226 RUB 7.950 07/10/2026 2,054,171 0.18
1,082,445,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6228 RUB 7.650 10/04/2030 1,163,456 0.10
417,575,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6229 RUB 7.150 12/11/2025 448,827 0.04
417,320,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6230 RUB 7.700 16/03/2039 448,553 0.04
275,070,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6232 RUB 6.000 06/10/2027 295,656 0.02
1,251,040,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6235 RUB 5.900 12/03/2031 1,344,669 0.11
162,790,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6237 RUB 6.700 14/03/2029 174,973 0.01
497,220,000 Russian Federal Bond -OFZ Bonds-Series 6239 RUB 6.900 23/07/2031 534,432 0.05
10,365,200 0.89
1,380,000 Senegal Government International Bond EUR 5.375 08/06/2037 1,134,614 0.10
180,700,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2030 ZAR 8.000 31/01/2030 10,460,423 0.89
282,599,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2035 ZAR 8.875 28/02/2035 15,849,955 1.35
397,440,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2037 ZAR 8.500 31/01/2037 21,056,188 1.80
232,647,300 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2040 ZAR 9.000 31/01/2040 12,594,646 1.08
221,490,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2044 ZAR 8.750 31/01/2044 11,520,121 0.98
520,485,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2048 ZAR 8.750 28/02/2048 26,981,016 2.31
278,465,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series R186 ZAR 10.500 21/12/2026 19,332,064 1.65
178,440,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series R213 ZAR 7.000 28/02/2031 9,381,561 0.80
1,200,000 South Africa Government International Bond Usb 5.875 20/04/2032 1,149,000 0.10
128,324,974 10.96
1,430,000 African Export-Import Bank usb 3.798 17/05/2031 1,258,743 0.11
2,490,000 Eastern & Southern African Trade & Development
Bank usb 4.875 23/05/2024 2,462,635 0.21
111,229,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-European Bank for
Reconstruction & Development IDR 5.200 28/05/2024 7,586,930 0.65
124,580,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-European Bank for
Reconstruction & Development IDR 5.600 30/01/2025 8,499,738 0.73
31,000,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-European Bank for
Reconstruction & Development IDR 4.600 09/02/2026 2,037,823 0.17
75,230,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-European Bank for
Reconstruction & Development IDR 5.000 01/12/2026 4,969,689 0.42
106,890,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Inter-American
Development Bank IDR 5.100 17/11/2026 7,078,375 0.61
33,893,933 2.90
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340,000 GC Treasury Center Co. Ltd. usb 2.980 18/03/2031 292,153 0.03
730,000 GC Treasury Center Co. Ltd. Usb 4.400 30/03/2032 689,536 0.06
600,000 PTT Treasury Center Co. Ltd. UsD 3.700 16/07/2070 441,558 0.04
547,206,593 Thailand Government Bond THB 1.250 12/03/2028 16,295,435 1.39
543,540,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.775 25/06/2032 17,018,229 1.45
168,260,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 1.585 17/12/2035 4,026,033 0.34
267,190,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.400 17/06/2036 7,830,009 0.67
585,330,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.300 17/06/2038 16,760,605 1.43
19,670,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.600 17/06/2067 490,351 0.04
63,843,909 5.45
280,000 Ukraine Government International Bond usb 7.750 01/09/2027 112,280 0.01
1,530,000 Ukraine Government International Bond EUR 4.375 27/01/2030 606,435 0.05
450,000 Ukraine Government International Bond usb 7.375 25/09/2032 168,300 0.02
887,015 0.08
440,000 NBK Tier 1 Ltd.(®) usD 3.625 Perp. 395,532 0.03
1,220,000 Gazprom PJSC / Gaz Finance pLC(®) usb 4.599 Perp. 213,500 0.02
340,000 Prudential PLC(®) usb 2.950 03/11/2033 301,112 0.03
300,000 Vedanta Resources Finance Il PLC usb 8.950 11/03/2025 273,600 0.02
320,000 Vedanta Resources Ltd. Usb 6.125 09/08/2024 257,404 0.02
1,045,616 0.09
4,360,000,000 Colombia-Citigroup, Inc. COP 11.000 25/07/2024 1,168,176 0.10
16,156,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-JPMorgan Chase Bank NA IDR 10.500 19/08/2030 1,337,931 0.11
300,000 Kosmos Energy Ltd. UsD 7.750 01/05/2027 288,750 0.02
800,000 Sasol Financing USA LLC usb 5.875 27/03/2024 803,000 0.07
57,000,000 United States Treasury Bill usb 1.053 18/08/2022 56,871,540 4.86
60,469,397 5.16
3,000,000 Uruguay Government International Bond usb 4.375 27/10/2027 3,113,490 0.27
390,000 National Bank of Uzbekistan Usb 4.850 21/10/2025 352,357 0.03
74,110,000 Petroleos de Venezuela SA usb 6.000 28/10/2022 2,964,400 0.25
20,000 Petroleos de Venezuela SA usb 6.000 15/11/2026 1,075 0.00
2,965,475 0.25
1,192,063,368 944,637,292 80.67
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9.52
111,485,072 Goldman Sachs US$ Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund
(X Distribution Class)(®(® 111,485,072 9.52
111,485,072 111,485,072 9.52
1,303,548,440 1,056,122,364 90.19
@ ®) ( )
1.52
201.000.000 Egypt Government International Bond-JP Morgan
AN Chase Bank NA(D) EGP 14.060 14/01/2026 10,383,696 0.88
92.800.000 Egypt Government International Bond-JP Morgan
A Chase Bank NA(D) EGP 14.060 14/01/2026 4,794,064 0.41
27.025.000 Egypt Government International Bond-JP Morgan
e Chase Bank NA(® EGP 14.060 14/01/2026 1,396,116 0.12
13.100.000 Egypt Government International Bond-JP Morgan
e Chase Bank NA(® EGP 14.060 14/01/2026 676,748 0.06
Indonesia Treasury Bond-JPMorgan Chase Bank NA
7,763,000,000 1R 8.250  19/05/2036 564,350 0.05
17,814,974 1.52
21,942,699 17,814,974 1.52
21,942,699 17,814,974 1.52
3.71
43,430,795 BNP Paribas USD Time Deposit usb 0.780 01/06/2022 43,430,796 3.711
43,430,795 43,430,796 3.71
1,368,921,934 1,117,368,134 95.42
(0.02
usb
(26) US Treasury Notes 10YR Futures 21/09/2022 (3,103,750) 19,385 0.00
(112) US Treasury Notes 2YR Futures 30/09/2022 (23,631,125) 11,862 0.00
(26,734,875) 31,247 0.00
31,247 0.00
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26 US Treasury Long Bond Futures 21/09/2022 3,616,438 (49,355) (0.00)
180 US Treasury Notes 5YR Futures 30/09/2022 20,318,906 (99,844) (0.01)
39 US Treasury Ultra Long Bond Futures 21/09/2022 6,053,531 (97,100) (0.01)

27 US Treasury Ultra Long Notes 10YR Futures
21/09/2022 3,466,125 (23,496) (0.00)
33,455,000 (269,795) (0.02)
(269,795) (0.02)

0.65

BRL 144,540,832 usb 30,479,585 02/06/2022 253,513 0.02
MXN 94,511,314 usb 4,694,774 02/06/2022 125,387 0.01
usb 27,653,141 INR 2,146,597,935 02/06/2022 3,713 0.00
EUR 47,036,255 usb 49,862,132 06/06/2022 533,595 0.06
GBP 55,264,771 usb 69,092,151 06/06/2022 480,693 0.03
usb 25,558,333 INR 1,983,443,363 06/06/2022 29,361 0.00
ZAR 271,912,075 usb 16,948,018 06/06/2022 457,909 0.04
EUR 3,126,367 CZK 77,279,067 07/06/2022 2,042 0.00
NOK 155,966,513 usb 16,133,019 07/06/2022 421,988 0.04
CLP 3,828,761,624 usb 4,464,427 09/06/2022 161,525 0.01
ILS 67,543,770 usb 19,985,458 09/06/2022 265,722 0.02
MXN 60,097,221 usb 2,957,301 09/06/2022 103,528 0.01
NOK 169,373,298 EUR 16,594,971 09/06/2022 195,784 0.01
BRL 52,257,560 usb 10,114,686 10/06/2022 970,764 0.09
NZD 165,391,927 usb 106,579,121 10/06/2022 1,030,393 0.10
EUR 12,081,335 SEK 126,658,018 13/06/2022 48,408 0.00
GBP 18,885,785 usb 23,341,980 13/06/2022 433,024 0.04
ILS 43,410,235 usb 12,783,657 13/06/2022 234,106 0.02
NOK 176,122,158 EUR 17,287,541 13/06/2022 166,802 0.01
SEK 148,100,308 EUR 14,039,451 13/06/2022 36,822 0.00
SEK 23,825,745 usb 2,366,392 13/06/2022 60,266 0.00
usb 23,528,311 GBP 18,624,971 13/06/2022 81,644 0.01
usb 23,736,543 INR 1,842,843,280 13/06/2022 40,263 0.00
ZAR 74,658,632 usb 4,571,870 13/06/2022 203,060 0.02
KRW 28,135,861,754 usb 22,235,086 14/06/2022 411,688 0.03
SEK 27,675,281 EUR 2,626,697 14/06/2022 3,436 0.00
usb 14,253,000 TRY 137,534,324 14/06/2022 5,992,265 0.51
CAD 3,224,300 EUR 2,324,222 15/06/2022 58,577 0.01
CAD 3,261,628 NZD 3,743,576 15/06/2022 143,874 0.01
CAD 38,114,581 usb 29,951,876 15/06/2022 190,641 0.02
CNH 697,434,012 usb 104,366,895 15/06/2022 81,355 0.01
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cop 3,821,884,863 usb 977,452 15/06/2022 40,161 0.00
CzZK 1,101,231,439 usD 47,336,284 15/06/2022 320,390 0.02
EUR 8,326,144 CHF 8,492,060 15/06/2022 68,479 0.00
EUR 3,210,428 HUF 1,225,497,421 15/06/2022 126,088 0.01
EUR 3,246,778 NOK 31,343,163 15/06/2022 153,083 0.01
GBP 3,956,346 usD 4,974,056 15/06/2022 6,595 0.00
MXN 1,959,851,279 UsD 94,275,112 15/06/2022 5,428,364 0.47
PLN 16,972,319 EUR 3,645,701 15/06/2022 62,774 0.00
PLN 71,406,846 usb 16,468,602 15/06/2022 236,677 0.02
SGD 14,030,933 EUR 9,423,943 15/06/2022 132,276 0.01
usb 3,710,137 AUD 4,940,808 15/06/2022 162,707 0.01
usb 10,606,283 CHF 9,791,944 15/06/2022 394,353 0.04
usb 1,555,811 CLP 1,245,348,971 15/06/2022 52,893 0.00
usb 60,319,981 CNH 388,174,460 15/06/2022 2,186,678 0.19
usb 40,570,395 EUR 37,103,071 15/06/2022 799,721 0.09
usb 18,329,762 GBP 14,085,180 15/06/2022 597,905 0.06
usb 20,732,144 HUF 7,364,420,735 15/06/2022 810,248 0.07
usb 2,572,363 ILS 8,258,829 15/06/2022 95,498 0.01
usb 12,618,315 INR 975,347,461 15/06/2022 79,371 0.00
usb 19,952,950 JPY 2,355,868,194 15/06/2022 1,648,862 0.15
usb 3,610,037 KRW 4,409,475,725 15/06/2022 60,757 0.00
usb 3,529,785 NOK 31,879,836 15/06/2022 145,688 0.01
usb 24,828,577 NZD 36,563,838 15/06/2022 1,040,343 0.09
usb 8,100,775 SEK 78,515,178 15/06/2022 103,420 0.01
usb 14,486,479 TRY 229,604,539 15/06/2022 713,415 0.06
usb 2,499,117 TWD 72,356,943 15/06/2022 3,133 0.00
usb 40,057,252 ZAR 611,018,286 15/06/2022 988,071 0.10
AUD 424,113 NZD 466,524 16/06/2022 998 0.00
EUR 22,278,860 usb 23,391,981 16/06/2022 489,943 0.04
KRW 12,476,233,890 usD 9,680,504 16/06/2022 362,043 0.03
NZD 15,324,303 AUD 13,870,495 16/06/2022 10,802 0.00
NzZD 33,349,712 usD 20,848,035 16/06/2022 848,847 0.08
BRL 4,973,637 usb 954,267 17/06/2022 98,815 0.01
NZD 26,076,689 usD 16,515,743 17/06/2022 449,205 0.04
BRL 542,823 UsD 106,020 21/06/2022 8,790 0.00
CHF 18,104,370 EUR 17,580,011 21/06/2022 37,208 0.00
CNH 63,578,128 usb 9,427,557 21/06/2022 92,162 0.01
Cop 8,370,543,363 usD 2,056,641 21/06/2022 170,500 0.02
INR 662,359,205 UsD 8,481,455 21/06/2022 28,449 0.00
usb 586,110 JPY 75,022,088 21/06/2022 3,075 0.00
EUR 9,115,922 SEK 95,840,453 23/06/2022 10,701 0.00
BRL 3,186,957 usD 642,273 24/06/2022 31,245 0.00
CNH 73,036,315 UsD 10,911,167 24/06/2022 23,723 0.00
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cop 1,723,869,428 UsD 428,184 24/06/2022 30,320 0.00
GBP 53,524 usD 66,798 24/06/2022 588 0.00
KRW 1,694,970,092 usD 1,338,099 24/06/2022 26,420 0.00
PLN 33,921,198 EUR 7,307,150 24/06/2022 89,716 0.00
CNH 4,338,431 USD 648,737 27/06/2022 745 0.00
GBP 2,466,259 usD 3,096,315 27/06/2022 8,733 0.00
NOK 43,324,039 usD 4,457,206 27/06/2022 142,265 0.01
NZD 7,239,622 usD 4,668,565 27/06/2022 40,819 0.00
USD 5,220,497 GBP 4,136,950 27/06/2022 12,031 0.00
KRW 6,237,991,297 usD 4,943,646 30/06/2022 78,681 0.01
SEK 28,792,759 usD 2,919,294 30/06/2022 15,013 0.00
USD 1,949,787 SEK 19,132,088 30/06/2022 11 0.00
WD 213,773,024 UsD 7,229,544 08/07/2022 160,369 0.01
PEN 25,833,289 usD 6,717,448 20/07/2022 274,646 0.02
IDR 354,228,760,334 usD 24,119,374 22/07/2022 204,972 0.02
CLP 7,971,611,473 usD 9,188,520 04/08/2022 336,080 0.03
cLP 1,592,806,547 USD 1,819,830 05/08/2022 82,927 0.01
coP 11,688,799,099 usD 2,841,264 08/08/2022 245,671 0.03
USD 8,138,701 ILS 26,174,346 07/09/2022 249,133 0.02
USD 3,323,280 TRY 54,617,776 18/01/2023 712,591 0.06
usD 2,546,317 TRY 42,008,883 24/01/2023 549,392 0.05
USD 5,338,519 TRY 96,626,659 08/02/2023 807,733 0.07
36,415,460 3.13
INR 1,180,399,304 USD 15,227,611 02/06/2022 (23,382) (0.00)
USD 28,510,485 BRL 144,540,833 02/06/2022 (2,222,614) (0.19)
USD 4,635,138 MXN 94,511,314 02/06/2022 (185,024) (0.01)
INR 1,637,900, 100 usD 21,096,878 06/06/2022 (15,407) (0.00)
usD 50,005,858 EUR 47,036,256 06/06/2022 (389,867) (0.04)
USD 68,703,126 GBP 55,264,771 06/06/2022 (869,717) (0.07)
USD 15,151,081 ZAR 241,708,566 06/06/2022 (321,425) (0.03)
USD 21,144,191 NOK 204,841,884 07/06/2022 (598,673) (0.05)
PHP 36,949,306 USD 704,467 08/06/2022 (513) (0.00)
EUR 19,623,240 NOK 201,089,343 09/06/2022 (317,343) (0.02)
USD 3,744,502 CLP 3,232,344,942 09/06/2022 (160,853) (0.01)
USD 19,013,331 ILS 65,059,985 09/06/2022 (493,156) (0.03)
USD 7,771,626 MXN 155,782,893 09/06/2022 (162,597) (0.01)
USD 9,942,218 BRL 48,386,037 10/06/2022 (321,961) (0.03)
USD 98,311,739 NZD 153,499,912 10/06/2022 (1,560,433) (0.13)
EUR 18,477,714 NOK 188,933,925 13/06/2022 (251,158) (0.01)
INR 696,088,348 USD 8,951,500 13/06/2022 (818) (0.00)
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UsD 16,658,003 ILS 55,949,185 13/06/2022 (119,912) (0.01)
usD 3,996,057 SEK 40,069,925 13/06/2022 (85,076) (0.00)
TRY 137,534,323 usD 11,150,053 14/06/2022 (2.,889,318) (0.25)
UsD 2,055,325 KRW 2,577,315,727 14/06/2022 (19,177) (0.00)
AUD 6,950,422 EUR 4,676,694 15/06/2022 (22,631) (0-00)
AUD 31,336,815 usD 22,825,858 15/06/2022 (326,474) (0.03)
CHF 16,661,528 EUR 16,280,762 15/06/2022 (75,144) (0.01)
CHF 12,279,451 usD 12,985,065 15/06/2022 (178,937) (0.02)
cLP 809,781,153 usD 1,026,274 15/06/2022 (49,010) (0-00)
CzK 113,072,984 EUR 4,595,528 15/06/2022 (32,608) (0.00)
EUR 9,314,611 CAD 12,784,405 15/06/2022 (126,107) (0.01)
EUR 2,351,537 CzK 61,245,778 15/06/2022 (129,855) (0.01)
EUR 2,291,430 GBP 1,964,603 15/06/2022 (17,065) (0-00)
EUR 6,363,216 NZD 10,576,506 15/06/2022 (60,305) (0.00)
EUR 5,917,486 PLN 27,845,665 15/06/2022 (171,418) (0.02)
EUR 18,812,143 SEK 198,816,354 15/06/2022 (86,245) (0.01)
EUR 31,331,732 USD 34,389,906 15/06/2022 (805,514) (0.06)
GBP 3,925,800 EUR 4,691,040 15/06/2022 (86,115) (0.01)
HUF 3,034,239,122 EUR 7,871,759 15/06/2022 (229,632) (0.02)
HUF 4,146,859, 144 usD 11,781,750 15/06/2022 (563,856) (0.05)
I0R 36,899,236,893 usD 2,552,874 15/06/2022 (15,483) (0-00)
ILS 31,759,958 usD 9,732,974 15/06/2022 (208,001) (0.02)
INR 195,469,570 usD 2,558,000 15/06/2022 (45,068) (0.00)
JPY 305,179,176 CAD 3,085,972 15/06/2022 (53,580) (0.01)
JPY 3,378,946,076 usD 28,190,024 15/06/2022 (1,937,058) (0.16)
KRW 4,432,421,124 usD 3,636,397 15/06/2022 (68,647) (0.00)
NOK 66,988,190 EUR 6,961,962 15/06/2022 (351,601) (0.03)
NOK 153,015,422 usD 16,880,425 15/06/2022 (637,587) (0.06)
NZD 7,579,657 AUD 6,902,435 15/06/2022 (24,566) (0-00)
RON 188,665,242 usD 41,261,754 15/06/2022 (431,970) (0.04)
SEK 123,105,486 EUR 11,724,019 15/06/2022 (27,730) (0.00)
SEK 120,309,506 usD 12,482,293 15/06/2022 (227,875) (0.02)
SGD 20,561,849 usD 15,131,575 15/06/2022 (134,333) (0.01)
THB 1,724,588,290 usD 51,179,217 15/06/2022 (766,833) (0.08)
TRY 125,110,530 usD 8,143,457 15/06/2022 (638,574) (0.06)
WD 143,043,575 usD 5,004,066 15/06/2022 (69,716) (0.01)
UsD 24,461,697 CAD 31,265,128 15/06/2022 (264,002) (0.03)
usD 1,553,960 cop 5,911,341,234 15/06/2022 (19,991) (0.00)
UsD 40,429,349 CzK 952,681,089 15/06/2022 (798,689) (0.08)
UsD 3,675,343 I0R 53,874,647,831 15/06/2022 (29,368) (0.00)
usD 35,883,822 MXN 742,727,181 15/06/2022 (1,900,926) (0.16)
usD 18,188,186 PLN 78,421,611 15/06/2022 (158,163) (0.02)
ZAR 404,698,231 usD 26,004,082 15/06/2022 (127,232) (0.02)

46/88



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
OOoooooooooooooood

2022 31
THB 99,618,000 usD 2,993,060 16/06/2022 (80,988) (0.01)
usD 26,751,040 EUR 25,237,598 16/06/2022 (302,515) (0.03)
UsD 12,565,342 KRW 15,886,128, 456 16/06/2022 (221,946) (0.02)
UsD 16,931,576 NZD 26,824,793 16/06/2022 (520, 280) (0.05)
usD 26,595,256 NZD 41,571,338 17/06/2022 (450,185) (0.04)
EUR 5,330,014 CHF 5,481,958 21/06/2022 (3,943) (0.00)
JPY 308,080,648 usD 2,397,723 21/06/2022 (3,469) (0.00)
UsD 7,434,433 CNH 50,063,115 21/06/2022 (61,648) (0.01)
usD 1,892,312 cop 7,571,034,621 21/06/2022 (122,105) (0.02)
usD 1,940,133 INR 151,136,342 21/06/2022 (1,647) (0.00)
ZAR 89,203,126 usD 5,731,339 21/06/2022 (31,798) (0.00)
SEK 31,435,767 EUR 2,993,363 23/06/2022 (7,082) (0.00)
EUR 3,068,015 PLN 14,246,298 24/06/2022 (38,599) (0-00)
usD 436,745 BRL 2,125,887 24/06/2022 (12,531) (0.00)
UsD 10,409,116 CNH 69,776,135 24/06/2022 (37,666) (0.00)
UsD 1,049,051 cop 4,167,355,892 24/06/2022 (59,356) (0.01)
UsD 8,114,045 KRW 10,271,535,045 24/06/2022 (154,951) (0.02)
usD 5,087,601 CNH 34,262,793 27/06/2022 (41,692) (0.00)
UsD 1,952,836 NOK 19,003,441 27/06/2022 (64,652) (0.01)
UsD 8,291,282 NZD 12,784,967 27/06/2022 (25,356) (0.00)
KRW 3,215,300,633 usD 2,648,278 29/06/2022 (59,620) (0.01)
usD 2,560,875 KRW 3,190, 238,457 29/06/2022 (7,605) (0.00)
UsD 10,732,591 KRW 13,338,150, 750 30/06/2022 (6,212) (0.01)
UsD 21,855,866 BRL 104,224,067 05/07/2022 (105,693) (0.01)
UsD 21,235,003 WD 618,448,771 08/07/2022 (144,132) (0.00)
usD 6,229,135 KRW 7,888,762,862 14/07/2022 (122,854) (0.01)
UsD 2,327,924 PEN 8,969,184 20/07/2022 (99,695) (0.01)
MYR 517,985,533 usD 118,329,077 22/07/2022 (262,007) (0.02)
EUR 6,932,770 CHF 7,150,458 25/07/2022 (26,703) (0-00)
INR 232,990,812 usD 3,015,863 29/07/2022 (34,148) (0.00)
UsD 2,911,786 cLp 2,576,347,811 05/08/2022 (165,904) (0.01)
UsD 11,460,034 cop 47,558,422,542 08/08/2022 (1,099,834) (0.10)
UsD 9,476,460 IDR 139,152,339,872 22/08/2022 (65,075) (0.01)
TRY 54,617,776 usD 3,173,773 18/01/2023 (563,084) (0.05)
TRY 42,008,883 usD 2,370,552 24/01/2023 (373,628) (0.03)
TRY 96,626,659 usD 5,051,054 08/02/2023 (520, 268) (0.04)

(28,805,204) (2.48)
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EUR
9,292,000 Call EUR / Put NOK Expires 07/06/2022 Strike 10.05 15,283 75,143 0.00
27,504,000 Call EUR / Put NOK Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 10.30 (140,949) 36,446 0.00
9,077,000 Call EUR / Put NOK Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 10.50 (63,895) 1,770 0.00
18,336,000 Call EUR / Put SEK Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 10.77 (105,587) 6,227 0.00
18,356,000 Call EUR / Put USD Expires 13/06/2022 Strike 1.09 (26,313) 31,639 0.00
36,450,000 Put EUR / Call CHF Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 1.01 (111,444) 91,800 0.01
36,382,000 Put EUR / Call CHF Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 1.04 287,851 428,093 0.04
27,494,000 Put EUR / Call CHF Expires 21/07/2022 Strike 1.02 (83,951) 91,952 0.01
18,549,000 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 02/06/2022 Strike 1.04 (112,307) 20 0.00
18,572,000 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 02/06/2022 Strike 1.04 (105,013) 20 0.00
27,173,000 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 14/06/2022 Strike 1.03 (164,910) 6,695 0.00
(611,235) 769,805 0.06

GBP
31,305,000 Put GBP / Call USD Expires 31/05/2022 Strike 1.24 (271,023) 0 0.00
31,419,000 Put GBP / Call USD Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 1.20 (275,469) 2,452 0.00
30,855,000 Put GBP / Call USD Expires 22/06/2022 Strike 1.22 (157,588) 82,542 0.01
31,106,000 Put GBP / Call USD Expires 23/06/2022 Strike 1.23 (124,567) 113,758 0.01
(828,647) 198,752 0.02

NZD
75,889,000 Put NzD / Call USD Expires 08/06/2022 Strike 0.63 (488,240) 17,680 0.00
74,914,000 Put NzD / Call USD Expires 08/06/2022 Strike 0.65 (223,275) 261,643 0.02
90,438,000 Put NzD / Call USD Expires 14/06/2022 Strike 0.61 (504,167) 4,531 0.00
37,889,000 Put NZD / Call USD Expires 15/06/2022 Strike 0.61 (207,846) 3,131 0.00
60,499,000 Put NzD / Call USD Expires 22/06/2022 Strike 0.63 (199,275) 87,519 0.01
(1,622,803) 374,504 0.03

usb
6,560,000 Call 12 month SOFR Swaption Expires 28/04/2023 Strike 2.70 (39,528) 204,071 0.02
29,299,000 Call USD / Put BRL Expires 08/06/2022 Strike 5.40 (324,223) 59 0.00
38,210,000 Call USD / Put BRL Expires 14/06/2022 Strike 5.41 (453,782) 2,331 0.00
18,990,000 Call USD / Put BRL Expires 15/06/2022 Strike 5.31 (197,496) 4,406 0.00
19,270,000 Call USD / Put BRL Expires 22/06/2022 Strike 5.13 (200,235) 41,045 0.00
9,801,000 Call USD / Put CLP Expires 07/06/2022 Strike 890.00 (95,354) 745 0.00
38,090,000 Call USD / Put CNH Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 6.85 (93,587) 34,967 0.00
38,330,000 Call USD / Put CNH Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 6.85 (102,226) 37,410 0.00
38,537,253 Call USD / Put CNH Expires 22/06/2022 Strike 6.78 (70,369) 99,619 0.01
39,110,000 Call USD / Put CNH Expires 23/06/2022 Strike 6.77 (33,478) 125,113 0.01
58,472,000 Call USD / Put CNH Expires 23/06/2022 Strike 6.85 (192,724) 81,393 0.01
9,495,000 Call USD / Put COP Expires 16/06/2022 Strike 4,230.00 (99,460) 1,272 0.00
9,635,000 Call USD / Put COP Expires 22/06/2022 Strike 4,155.00 (116,362) 19,415 0.00
19,573,000 Call USD / Put ILS Expires 07/06/2022 Strike 3.43 (105,087) 5,676 0.00
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19,116,000 Call USD / Put ILS Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 3.50 (143,523) 1,281 0.00
39,146,000 Call USD / Put INR Expires 31/05/2022 Strike 77.73 (163,787) 0 0.00
39,145,000 Call USD 7/ Put INR Expires 02/06/2022 Strike 77.62 (46,113) 70,148 0.01
38,810,000 Call USD / Put INR Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 78.70 (161,372) 22,160 0.00
37,979,000 Call USD / Put INR Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 79.07 (129,660) 39,536 0.00
29,359,000 Call USD / Put KRW Expires 10/06/2022 Strike 1,297.00 (228,384) 2,672 0.00
38,210,000 Call USD / Put KRW Expires 14/06/2022 Strike 1,310.00 (264,451) 3,133 0.00
38,541,000 Call USD / Put KRW Expires 22/06/2022 Strike 1,285.00 (204,691) 48,716 0.01
9,786,000 Call USD / Put MXN Expires 31/05/2022 Strike 21.05 (79,590) 0 0.00
19,603,000 Call USD / Put MXN Expires 07/06/2022 Strike 20.74 (132,438) 1,274 0.00
39,110,000 Call USD / Put MXN Expires 23/06/2022 Strike 20.39 (136,142) 113,693 0.01
19,573,000 Call USD / Put NOK Expires 02/06/2022 Strike 9.66 (148,089) 2,995 0.00
19,116,000 Call USD / Put NOK Expires 23/06/2022 Strike 10.07 (187,279) 19,785 0.00
38,810,000 Call USD / Put SEK Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 10.29 (338,578) 11,798 0.00
39,057,000 Call USD / Put SEK Expires 28/06/2022 Strike 10.07 (121,663) 202,511 0.02
4,922,000 Call USD / Put TRY Expires 30/05/2022 Strike 15.22 241,419 352,016 0.03
4,922,000 Call USD / Put TRY Expires 30/05/2022 Strike 16.01 (16,129) 114,815 0.01
9,760,000 Call USD / Put ZAR Expires 02/06/2022 Strike 16.60 (79,544) 78 0.00
9,702,000 Call USD / Put ZAR Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 16.98 (84,475) 1,455 0.00
19,165,000 Call USD / Put ZAR Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 16.42 (126,891) 50,749 0.01
6,560,000 Put 12 month SOFR Swaption Expires 05/05/2023 Strike 3.00 (85,275) 144,218 0.01
38,330,000 Put USD 7/ Call JPY Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 125.80 (155,582) 86,894 0.01
(4,916,148) 1,947,449 0.17
11,269,343 3,290,510 0.28

AUD
(13,661,000) Call AUD / Put NzZD Expires 14/06/2022 Strike 1.12 19,152 (8,306) (0.00)
(13,661,000) Put AUD / Call NzZD Expires 14/06/2022 Strike 1.08 24,930 (2,707) (0.00)
44,082 (11,013) (0.00)

EUR
(9,292,000) Call EUR / Put NOK Expires 07/06/2022 Strike 10.05 177,374 (75,143) (0.01)
(3,071,000) Call EUR / Put PLN Expires 31/05/2022 Strike 4.68 50,384 0 (0.00)
(2,995,000) Call EUR / Put PLN Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 4.67 46,076 (3,760) (0.00)
(3,071,000) Call EUR / Put SEK Expires 31/05/2022 Strike 10.30 (33,932) (67,566) (0.00)
(3,066,000) Call EUR / Put SEK Expires 07/06/2022 Strike 10.38 (6,410) (44,839) (0.00)
(2,989,000) Call EUR / Put SEK Expires 14/06/2022 Strike 10.55 21,614 (15,645) (0.00)
(18,191,000) Put EUR / Call CHF Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 1.04 70,078 (214,047) (0.02)
(18,191,000) Put EUR / Call CHF Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 1.04 (26,453) (214,047) (0.02)
(18,191,000) Put EUR / Call CHF Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 1.05 (241,291) (384,461) (0.03)
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EUR
(3,071,000) Put EUR / Call PLN Expires 31/05/2022 Strike 4.68 (53,244) (80,696) (0.01)
(2,995,000) Put EUR / Call PLN Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 4.67 (40,806) (68,637) (0.01)
(3,071,000) Put EUR / Call SEK Expires 31/05/2022 Strike 10.30 27,317 0 (0.00)
(3,066,000) Put EUR / Call SEK Expires 07/06/2022 Strike 10.38 21,242 (1,320) (0.00)
(2,989,000) Put EUR / Call SEK Expires 14/06/2022 Strike 10.55 6,633 (23,041) (0.00)
18,582 (1,193,202) (0.10)

GBP
(31,305,000) Put GBP / Call USD Expires 31/05/2022 Strike 1.24 570,401 0 (0.00)
(15,427,000) Put GBP / Call USD Expires 22/06/2022 Strike 1.25 126,840 (115,574) (0.01)
(15,553,000) Put GBP / Call USD Expires 23/06/2022 Strike 1.25 95,278 (139,427) (0.01)
792,519 (255,001) (0.02)

NZD
(37,944,500) Put NZD / Call USD Expires 08/06/2022 Strike 0.63 495,899 (8,840) (0.00)
(37,944,500) Put NzD / Call USD Expires 08/06/2022 Strike 0.63 490,199 (8,840) (0.00)
(74,914,000) Put NzD / Call USD Expires 08/06/2022 Strike 0.65 850,576 (261,643) (0.03)
(30,249,000) Put NZD / Call USD Expires 22/06/2022 Strike 0.64 161,182 (118,894) (0.01)
1,997,856 (398,217) (0.04)

usb
(6,560,000) Call 12 month SOFR Swaption Expires 28/04/2023 Strike 2.01 26,100 (66,699) (0.01)
(6,560,000) Call 12 month SOFR Swaption Expires 28/04/2023 Strike 2.36 30,530 (120,269) (0.01)
(19,105,000) Call USD / Put BRL Expires 14/06/2022 Strike 5.22 448,662 (6,801) (0.00)
(9,495,000) Call USD / Put BRL Expires 15/06/2022 Strike 5.12 208,510 (10,103) (0.00)
(9,635,000) Call USD / Put BRL Expires 22/06/2022 Strike 4.96 180,676 (53,725) (0.01)
(3,219,000) Call USD / Put CNH Expires 01/06/2022 Strike 6.64 10,997 (20,167) (0.00)
(3,202,000) Call USD / Put CNH Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 6.76 31,613 (4,153) (0.00)
(19,045,000) Call USD / Put CNH Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 6.77 93,130 (45,708) (0.00)
(19,165,000) Call USD / Put CNH Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 6.77 97,991 (47,663) (0.01)
(19,268,180) Call USD / Put CNH Expires 22/06/2022 Strike 6.70 50,136 (120,176) (0.01)
(19,555,000) Call USD / Put CNH Expires 23/06/2022 Strike 6.69 22,527 (136,161) (0.01)
(39,110,000) Call USD / Put CNH Expires 23/06/2022 Strike 6.77 228,207 (125,113) (0.01)
(4,747,000) Call USD / Put COP Expires 16/06/2022 Strike 4,090.00 100,413 (2,972) (0.00)
(4,818,000) Call USD / Put COP Expires 22/06/2022 Strike 4,026.00 96,760 (22,182) (0.00)
(19,573,000) Call USD / Put ILS Expires 07/06/2022 Strike 3.43 289,191 (5,676) (0.00)
(19,573,000) Call USD / Put INR Expires 31/05/2022 Strike 76.91 (46,212) (190,034) (0.02)
(19,573,000) Call USD / Put INR Expires 02/06/2022 Strike 76.64 (128,321) (256,993) (0.02)
(39,145,000) Call USD / Put INR Expires 02/06/2022 Strike 77.62 244,500 (70,148) (0.01)
(19,270,000) Call USD / Put KRW Expires 22/06/2022 Strike 1,266.70 167,553 (54,168) (0.01)
(9,801,000) Call USD / Put MXN Expires 07/06/2022 Strike 20.27 130,647 (4,910) (0.00)
(19,555,000) Call USD / Put MXN Expires 23/06/2022 Strike 19.97 120,459 (129,767) (0.01)
(9,786,000) Call USD / Put NOK Expires 02/06/2022 Strike 9.41 114,780 (44,654) (0.00)

50/88



EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )
OOoooooooooooooood

2022 31
( )
usb
(19,573,000) Call USD / Put NOK Expires 02/06/2022 Strike 9.66 376,565 (2,995) (0.00)
(19,405,000) Call USD / Put SEK Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 10.02 303,067 (43,331) (0.00)
(19,529,000) Call USD / Put SEK Expires 28/06/2022 Strike 9.85 81,924 (226,927) (0.02)
(4,922,000) Call USD / Put TRY Expires 30/05/2022 Strike 15.22 (5,695) (352,017) (0.03)
(4,922,000) Call USD / Put TRY Expires 30/05/2022 Strike 16.01 (56,933) (114,815) (0.01)
(9,582,000) Call USD / Put ZAR Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 15.95 109,551 (71,118) (0.01)
(6,560,000) Put 12 month SOFR Swaption Expires 05/05/2023 Strike 3.45 66,945 (78,245) (0.01)
(6,560,000) Put 12 month SOFR Swaption Expires 05/05/2023 Strike 3.89 42,412 (41,892) (0.00)
(3,219,000) Put USD / Call CNH Expires 01/06/2022 Strike 6.64 21,663 (608) (0.00)
(3,202,000) Put USD / Call CNH Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 6.76 (16,490) (42,843) (0.00)
(19,165,000) Put USD / Call JPY Expires 17/06/2022 Strike 128.00 113,265 (129,843) (0.01)
(9,760,000) Put USD / Call ZAR Expires 02/06/2022 Strike 15.60 33,321 (44,535) (0.00)
(9,702,000) Put USD / Call ZAR Expires 09/06/2022 Strike 15.80 (87,541) (159,899) (0.01)
3,500,903 (2,847,310) (0.24)
(11,058,685) (4,704,743) (0.40)
210,658 (1,414,233) (0.12)
0.64
165,790,000 Fixed 5.800% Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) BRL 02/01/2023 1,778,221 0.15
78,330,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) Fixed 12.400% BRL 02/01/2023 99,437 0.01
16,325,000 Fixed 11.814% Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) BRL 02/01/2024 27,301 0.00
16,425,000 Fixed 11.905% Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) BRL 02/01/2024 25,564 0.00
22,000,000 Fixed 12.185% Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) BRL 02/01/2024 11,776 0.00
10,510,000 Fixed 8.495% Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) BRL 04/01/2027 217,908 0.02
18,320,110,000 Fixed 7.700% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP 15/06/2024 26,932 0.00
4,081,940,000 Fixed 5.800% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP 15/06/2032 130,462 0.01
63,450,000 Floating (CNY 3 month CFXS) Fixed 2.250% CNY  16/03/2024 2,221 0.00
273,030,000 Floating (CNY 3 month CNRR) Fixed 2.250% CNY 15/06/2027 67,542 0.01
8,890,000 Fixed 0.000% Floating (EUR 6 month EURIBOR) EUR 16/03/2024 213,996 0.02
5,380,000 Fixed 0.000% Floating (EUR 6 month EURIBOR) EUR 16/03/2027 424,269 0.04
3,110,000 Fixed 0.500% Floating (EUR 6 month EURIBOR) EUR 16/03/2037 759,495 0.06
7,562,525,000 Fixed 6.500% Floating (HUF 6 month BUBOR) HUF  15/06/2024 363,015 0.03
5,129,515,824 Fixed 5.000% Floating (HUF 6 month BUBOR) HUF  15/06/2032 1,208,453 0.10
748,800,000 Fixed 1.250% Floating (ILS 3 month TELBOR) ILS 15/06/2024 2,314,380 0.20
2,140,440,000 Fixed 6.000% Floating (INR 6 month MIBOR) INR  15/06/2024 321,629 0.03
4,318,220,000 Fixed 5.500% Floating (INR 6 month MIBOR) INR  16/03/2027 2,301,138 0.20
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64,925,640,000 Fixed 3.000% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  15/06/2024 65,921 0.00
11,578,380,000 Fixed 2.500% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  15/06/2032 68,424 0.01
1,159,400,000 Fixed 8.700% Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) MXN 12/06/2024 347,187 0.03
525,990,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 8.760% MXN  09/06/2027 200,035 0.02
482,060,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 8.400% MXN  02/06/2032 33,367 0.00
73,990,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 2.250% MYR 17/06/2022 2,921 0.00
78,930,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 2.250% MYR 17/06/2022 2,996 0.00
72,640,000 Floating (MYR 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.250% MYR 17/06/2022 2,978 0.00
126,910,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 3.650% MYR 27/02/2024 202,215 0.02
191,640,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 3.693% MYR 01/03/2024 337,222 0.03
202,350,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 3.605% MYR 06/03/2024 285,749 0.02
95,184,991 Fixed 4.750% Floating (PLN 6 month WIBOR) PLN  15/06/2024 548,540 0.05
52,175,000 Fixed 3.750% Floating (PLN 6 month WIBOR) PLN  15/06/2032 1,624,805 0.14
22,560,000 Fixed 1.500% Floating (USD 1 month SOFR) USD 16/03/2032 1,886,600 0.16
498,627,464 Fixed 6.100% Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) ZAR 15/06/2024 40,480 0.00
15,943,179 1.36
2,140,000 Floating (Qatar Government Fixed 1.000% USD 20/12/2024 227 0.00
International Bond)
2,830,000 Floating (Chile Government Fixed 1.000% USD  20/06/2027 27,051 0.00
International Bond)
6,480,000 Floating (Markit CDX Emerging Fixed 1.000% USD 20/06/2027 27,247 0.00
Markets 37 Index)
6,210,000 Floating (Mexico Government Fixed 1.000% USD 20/06/2027 30,657 0.01
International Bond)
85,182 0.01
16,028,361 1.37
37,750,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) Fixed 10.565% BRL 02/01/2023 (89,783) (0.01)
90,400,000 Floating (BRL 1 month LIBOR) Fixed 7.200% BRL 02/01/2023 (809,455) (0.07)
51,745,399 Floating (BRL 1 month CETIP) Fixed 9.200% BRL 02/01/2024 (381,169) (0.03)
57,300,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) Fixed 12.010% BRL 02/01/2025 (68,402) (0.01)
395,980,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) Fixed 12.060% BRL 02/01/2025 (620,078) (0.05)
58,375,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) Fixed 12.095% BRL 02/01/2025 (50,979) (0.01)
19,430,000 Floating (BRL 1 month CETIP) Fixed 11.230% BRL 04/01/2027 (79,525) (0.01)
35,486,370,000 Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) Fixed 6.450% CLP 15/06/2027 (13,049) (0.00)
234,280,000 Floating (CNY 3 month CNRR) Fixed 2.250% CNY 15/06/2024 (34,894) (0.00)
58,754,130,000 Fixed 8.650% Floating (COP 3 month CPIBR) COP 15/06/2024 (28,978) (0.00)
55,475,240,000 Fixed 8.300% Floating (COP 3 month CPIBR) COP  15/06/2032 (186,620) (0.02)
652,910,000 Fixed 4.500% Floating (CZK 6 month PRIBOR) CZK 15/06/2024 (23,364) (0.00)
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312,552,653 Floating (CZK 6 month PRIBOR) Fixed 3.250% CZK 15/06/2032 (33,672) (0.00)
19,400,000 Floating (EUR 6 month EURIBOR)  Fixed 0.250% EUR 16/03/2032 (216,464) (0.02)
786,430,000 Fixed 3.200% Floating (HKD 3 month HIBOR) HKD 21/09/2024 (267,414) (0.02)
9,410,605,000 Floating (HUF 6 month BUBOR) Fixed 7.250% HUF  15/06/2027 (291,645) (0.03)
244,625,000 Floating (ILS 3 month TELBOR) Fixed 2.250% ILS 15/06/2027 (952,408) (0.08)
21,460,000 Floating (ILS 3 month TELBOR)  Fixed 1.750% ILS 15/06/2032 (498,727) (0.04)
142,580,000 Floating (INR 6 month LIBOR) Fixed 5.500% INR  15/09/2026 (94,107) (0.01)
26,240,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 3.250% MYR 18/12/2024 (34,399) (0.00)
19,680,000 Floating (MYR 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.250% MYR 17/06/2025 (176,520) (0.02)
54,770,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 2.000% MYR 16/06/2026 (743,759) (0.06)
79,810,000 Floating (MYR 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.000% MYR 16/06/2026 (612,744) (0.05)
72,530,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 3.000% MYR  15/12/2031 (1,317,039) (0.11)
22,970,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 3.271% MYR 21/12/2031 (324,642) (0.03)
33,020,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 3.500% MYR 16/03/2032 (322,507) (0.03)
98,900,000 Floating (USD 1 month SOFR) Fixed 2.800% USD 21/09/2024 (122,348) (0.01)
184,100,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 8.000% ZAR  15/06/2032 (148,892) (0.01)
(8,543,583) (0.73)
7,410,000 Fixed 1.000% Floating (China Government USD 20/06/2022 (2,490) (0.00)
International Bond)
2,210,000 Fixed 1.000% Floating (China Government USD 20/06/2022 (647) (0.00)
International Bond)
4,070,000 Floating (Saudi Government Fixed 1.000% USD 20/12/2026 (11,597) (0.00)
International Bond)
4,410,000 Floating (Indonesia Government  Fixed 1.000% USD 20/06/2027 (9,307) (0.00)
International Bond)
4,420,000 Floating (iTraxx Asia ex-Japan  Fixed 1.000% USD 20/06/2027 (4,244) (0.00)
IG Series 37 Version 1 Index)
30,000 Floating (Peruvian Government Fixed 1.000% USD 20/06/2027 (455) (0.00)
International Bond)
(28,740) (0.00)
(8,572,323) (0.73)
1,130,781,647 96.57
1,369,132,592
40,185,007 3.43
1,170,966,654 100.00
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2022 31
( )
1,368,921,934 1,117,368,134 95.42
31,247 0.00
(269,795) (0.02)
36,166,327 3.13
(28,556,071) (2.48)
11,269,343 3,290,510 0.28
(11,058, 685) (4,704,743) (0.40)
16,028,361 1.37
(8,572,323) 0.73)
40,185,007 3.43
1,170,966,654 100.00
NA BNP SA NA
HSBC P NA
UBS
NA BNP SA NA
HSBC JP NA
UBS
NA BNP SA NA P NA
2022 31 1.13
@
®)
© 2022 31
(d) 144A 1933 144A
©
® 2022 31 0.779
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2022
2022

310,969,567

1,308,159,557

384,788,923

873,919,971

508,674,115

14,884,161,069

18,199,254,477

952,538,571

11 94,979,717,359

5,890,643,030

30,224,655

2,979,398,929

1,488,945,573

67 50,938,128,616

37 9,630,850,091

5,295,800,000
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23 103

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Ireland

2022 30
136.68
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
797,330 108,979,064 780,077 106,620,924
(46) (6,287) 305 41,687
(792,422) (108,308,239) (774,780) (105,896,930)
4,862 664,538 5,602 765,681
(635) (86,792) (776) (106,064)

4,227 577,746 4,826 659,618
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2020 12 31

118,155 16,149,425

172,899 23,631,835

291,054 39,781,261

(258,076) (35,273,828)

32,978 4,507,433

25,000 3,417,000

7,978 1,090,433

2021 12 31
93,175 12,735,159

122,391 16,728,402

215,566 29,463,561

10 (186,339) (25,468,815)
29,227 3,994,746

11 25,000 3,417,000
4,227 577,746

29,227 3,994,746

32,978 4,507,433

2022 23
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2020 12 31

2021 12 31
25,000 3,417,000 3,152 430,815 28,152 3,847,815
4,826 659,618 4,826 659,618
25,000 3,417,000 7,978 1,090,433 32,978 4,507,433
4,227 577,746 4,227 577,746
(7,978)  (1,090,433) (7,978)  (1,090,433)
25,000 3,417,000 4,227 577,746 29,227 3,994,746
0.31912 7,978,045 2020 12 31
2021 12 31
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2021 12 31
47 49
10282 200
www . goldmansachs.com/shareholders
101 101
2014
101 |
45(b) 46 52
13 91 99
15 110 113(a) 114 115
118 119(a) (©) 120 127 129
9@ )
38
10(H) 16 40
30 31
24 17
24

15
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
(46) 305
(46) 305

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1,292 1,203
1,292 1,203

2020 2020
2020
31,321 2020 29,768

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
633,386 637,223
31,822 31,333
103,931 85,581
17,529 15,338
4,326 3,576
1,428 1,729

792,422 774,780
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
35,000 30,000
6,750
35,000 36,750
22 2020 20
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
622 716
(11) 96
® 611 812
(6) (1)
30 (15)
24 (36)
635 776
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
4,862 5,602
608 700
8 81
19 ®)
635 776

12.5

15
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

21 48

21 48

48 9

29) 36

(©)) 3

12 31 21 48
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

122,079 172,588

36 93

255 170

21 48

122,391 172,899
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

151,730 224,127

33,313 31,077

1,296 2,872

186,339 258,076
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11
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
25,000,000 25,000 25,000,000 25,000
2 2
2018 12 19
25,000,000
12
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
7,978
7,978
2021 12 0.31912 7,978,044 2020 12 31
2021 12
13
2020 12 31
14
2022
2021 12 31
15

2021
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2020 12 31 290.8 186.1
257.7
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

for the vear ended 31 December 2021

Note Year ended Year ended

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

LTSS MWy LSS 000

Tumover TaT. 350 TEO,0TT
Interest receivable and similar income (46) 305
Administrative expenses & (792422) (774, 780)

OFPERATING PROFIT AND PROFIT BEFORE

TAXATION 4,862 5,602
Tax on profit 7 (635) {776)
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 4,247 4,826

The operating profits of the company are derived from continuing operations.

The compary hias no recogmsed gains and losses other than those included in the profit and loss account for the vear
shown above and therefore no separate statement of comprehensive income has been presented,

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these Ninancial statements.

- 10
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NCES

as al 3 December 2021

Note 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
LIS5" niwn LSS 000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash at bank and in hand 93175 118.155
Diebiors a9 122,381 T1.809
215,566 290,054
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE
WITHIN ONE YEAR 10 {186,339 {238.076)
NET CURRENT ASSETS AND NET ASSETS 29,227 32078
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 11 25000 25,000
Profit and loss account 4227 7,978
TOTALSHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS 29227 32978

The Fnancial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Barbara Healy Glenn Thorpe

Director Director

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these financial statements,

=11 =
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the vear ended 31 December 2021

Called up share Profit and loss  Total shareholders’

capital account Turicks

LSS (i LSS M) LS5 000

Balance at 31 December 2019 25,00 3152 28,152
Prafit for the financial vear - 4.826 4.826
Balanece at 31 December 2020 25, (i 7.978 32,978
Profit for the fmancial period 4,227 4,227
Dividends paid - (7.978) (7.978)
Balance at 31 December 2021 2E, (W) 4,227 29227

On & December 2021, a dividend af $0.31912 per share (totalling USS7,978,045) wag paid to the immediate parent (31
December 2020: USS nil). The directors do not recommend the payvment of a final dividend in respect of the vear ended

31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: USE nil).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

GENERAL INFORMATION

The company is a private limited company and iz ncorporated and domiciled in Ireland. The address of its
registered office is 47-49 8. Stephen s Green, Dublin 2, Ireland.

The immnediate pareni undertaking iz Goldman Sachs Asset Management International Holdings LL.C., a
company incorporated and domiciled in the United States of America.

The ultimate parent undertaking and the parent comparny of the smallest and largest group for which consolidated
financial statements are prepared iz The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc,, a company incorporated inthe United States
of America. Copies of its consolidated Nnancial statements can be ebtained from Investor Relations, 200 West
Strect, Mew York, NY 10282, United States of Amenca, or at www.geldmansachs. comshareholders,
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

a.  Basis of preparation

The company prepares financial statements under Irish Generally Accepled Accounting Practices (Irish
GAAP),

The fmancial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis as the Directors are of the view that
the Comparmy can confinue in operational existence for the foreseeable fiture, The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101} and Insh law, including the Companies Act 2014,

The followng exemptions from the disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards

(TFE.5) as adopted by the ELT have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements in accord ance
with FES 101:

(1) IFES 2 “Share-based Payment” paragraph 45(b) and 46 to 52, These disclosures are provided in the
consolidated financial statemvents of Group Inc.;

(i) TFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments; Disclosures";
(i} IFRS 13 ‘Far Value Measurement” paragraphs 91-99;

(iv)  IFES 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraghs
PR3ca), 114, 115, 118, 119¢a) to(e), 120 to 127 and 129;

(v} IAZ 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements’ paragraph 38 to present comparative information in
respect of [AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” paragraph 79(a)(ivy,

(vi) [AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements' paragraphs 10, 16, and 40A-D;

(vii) IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows"

(viii} TAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” paragraphs 30 and 31;
(ix)  [AS 24 ‘Related Panty Disclosures” paragraph 17, and

(x)  TAS 2 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ requirements to disclose transactions with companies also wholly
owned within G35 Group.

=13 -
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (CONTINUED)

.

Revenue recognition

The company accounts for revenues camed from contracts with clients for mvestment management services
under IFRS 15, As such, revenues from theese services are recognized when performance ebligations related
to the underlying trunsactions are completed.

If the company 15 principal to the transaction, the company recognises revenue on contracts with clients,
gross of expenses incurmed to satisfy some or all of its performance obligations, The comgarny is principal to
the transaction if it has the primary obligation 1o provide the service Lo the client. The company satisfies the
performance obligation by itself, or by engaging other G Group emtities to satisfv some or all of its
performance obligations on its behalfl Such revenue is recogmsed in tumover and expenses ingurred are
recognised in administrative expenses.

Tumover represents management company fecs and revenes associated with ammangements where the
compaiy 15 principal to providing services bl ultimately sub-delegates provision of these services, such as
portfolio management. It is recognised on an accruals basis over the period that the related service is
provided.

Dividends

Final equity dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the cormpany 's shareholder. Interim equity dividends are recogmised and deducted
from equity when paid

Foregn currencles

The comparny s financial statements are presented in US. dollars, which 1% also the compamy’s functional
CUTENCY.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencics are translated into 1.8, dollars at rates of exchange miling
o the date the transaction cccurred. Monetasy assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cwrrencies are
transtated imto U5, dollars at rates of exchange muling o the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are recogrised in the profit and loss account.

Cash at bank and in hand

This mcludes cash at bank and in hand and highly liquid deposits held in the ordinary course of business.
Financial assets and Mnancial Babilities

{i) Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrarment.

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire o if the cormpany transfers the financial asset and either a) substantialty all the risk and rewards
of ownership, or b) neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership and
the company does not retain control of that financial asset. A financial lability 15 derecoonised onby
when it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, is cancelled or
expires).

- 14 -
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (CONTINUED)
. Financial assets and Anandal liabilities {continued)
{il) Classification and measurement

The company classifies its financial asseis as fmancial assets measured at amortised cost on the basis
of both the company s business model for managing financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. The business model reflects how the company maniges particular
groups of assets in order to generate fiture cash flows, Where the business model is to hold the assets
to collect contractual cash Nows, the company subsequently assesses whether the cash flows represent
soleby payments of principal and interest.

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows and have cash flows that
represent zolely pavments of prmcipal and interest are measured at amortised cost, unless they are
designated at fair value through profit or less. The company considers whether the cash flows represent
basic lending arrangements and where confractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility
mconsistent with a basic lending arrangement the fAnancial asset i classified md measwred at Gair value
through prefit o loss,

Financial assets at amortised cost are mitially measured at far value plus transaction costs and
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is
method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and allocating the interest income
over the relevant period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected lifie of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount of the financ mal asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial asset but does net consider future
credit logses, All finance income i= recognised in the profit and los: account.

The company classifies itz financial liabilities as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, The
classification, which is determined at matial recogmition, depends on the purpose for which they were
acquired or ongeated.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value phas transaction

costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interext method (see above).
Finance costs, mcluding discounts allowed on issue, are recorded in the profit and loss account.

(iily Offzetting fnancial assets and fnancial labiities

Financial assets and financial liabilties are offset and the nel amount presented in the balance sheet

where there is:
(i) Currently a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and
{11} Intent bo scitle on anet basis of to realise the asset and sefitle the hability simultanecusly.

Where these conditions are not met, financial assets and financial labilities are presented on a gross
bazizs on the balance she.

2. Current and deferred tax

The t expense for the year comprises current and deferred tae, Tax 15 recognised i the profit and loss
account.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substamtively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable income,

=15-
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (CONTINUED)

¢ Current and deferred tax {(continued)

Dieferred tax 15 recogmised in respect of all temporary differences that have originated, but not reversed at
the balance sheet date, wiere transactions or events have occurred by that date that will result in an obligation

1o pay meore tax or a right to pay less tax in the further with the following exceptions:

(i} Dreferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the directors consider that it 15 more likely than
not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the fiture reversal of the underlying temporary

differences can be deducted.

(ii)  Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apphy inthe periods
in which temporary differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at

the balance sheet date,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGENMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires management Lo make judgerments, etimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts recognised in these financial statements, The mature of estimation means that actual

oulcomes could differ from those estimates.

In the opinion of mamagement, there were no eslimates or

Judgements made that had a significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.

4. INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
LSS (WM} LISE" 001y
Interest on overnight deposits {46 305
(41) 305
S DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS
The table below presents the company”s director's emoluments:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
IS5 (W LISE 00y

Aggregate emoluments:
For qualifying services 1,292 1,203
1,292 1,203

The amounts included above relate to emoluments paid to four (2020: four) non-executive directors and to bwo
{2020: twoh executive directors, Company contributions made for two (2020: two) directors in respect of defined

contributicn schermes were USS31 321 (2020: USS20, 768),

- 16 -
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

6. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
TS DD TISE" 000

Fees charged by group undertakings for sub-delegated
funetions 633, 3806 637,223
Fees charged by external parties for sub-delegated functions 31,822 31,333
Transaction based expenses 103,931 85581
Managerment fees charged by growp undertakings (note a) 17,529 15338
Direct costs of emplovment 4,326 3.576
Other expenses 1,428 1,729
TO2,422 774,780

4. Management fees charged by group undertakings relate to operational and admenistrative support, and
marsagement services received from group indertakings,

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Aunditors’ remmuneration €35, 000 £30,000
Non-Audit Services = €6, 750
€35, 000 £36,750

The average menthly number of employees, includng executive Direciors, during the year was 22 {2020:
20,

7. TAX ON PROFIT

a.  Analysis of charge for the period:

Year ended Year ended
31 Decemher 2021 31 December 2020
LTSS 004 LISS 0y
Current Tax
Irish corporation tax at 12.5% 622 716
Adjustmments in respect of prior periods (11} E]
Tax charge on profit en erdinary activities (See note T{b)) 611 812
Deferred tax
Other tming differences (6 (213
Adjustrmems in respect of prior periods 3 (153
Total deferred tax (see note §) 24 {36
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 635 TG

77/88



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
OOoooooooooooooood

GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

7. TAX ON PROFIT (CONTINUED)
b. Factors alTecting the tax charge lor the current period:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

USS (M) LISS" 001

Prefit on ordimary activities before tax 4,862 5.602
Profit on ordinary activities at standard Irish

corporation tax rate (12.5%) il T

Permanent differences - .

Adjustrnerds in respect of prior peniods 8 81

Exchange differences 19 {5y

Current tax charge lor the period 635 776

¢, Factors that may afTect future tax charges:
The standard rate of Irish corporation tax i 12.5%6 of prafit before tac,

As per the OECDs recent global minimam tax rate agreement, it is expected that certain Multinational
Enterprizes (MNE), mcluding those which are domiciled i Ireland, will be subject to & minimum 1 5% tax
rate from 2023 onwards, 1t s mtended that this mereased rate will only apply to firms with a tumover of
more than €750m,

. DEFERRED TAX: ORIGINATION & REVERSAL OF TIMING DIFFERENCES

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
LI5S (W LISE 004y
Deferred tax balance comprises:

Othver timing differences 21 48
21 48

The movemnents in the deferred tax balance were as follows:
Ag at 1 January 48 9
Transfer 1o/from the profit and loss account for the peried 24y 36
Exchange differences (3 i
As at 31 December 21 48

9. DEBTORS

Detors, all of which are due within one vear of the balance sheet date, compaise:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

USE 0040 LISS" 000

Armounts due from customers 122079 172,588
Ammoants due from group undertakings 36 a3
Other debstors 255 170
Deferred tax 21 48
122,391 172,399

- 18-
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

1.

1.

1.

13.

14.

15.

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
LSS 0040 LSS 0040
Ameunts due to group undertakings 151,730 24,127
Accruals 33,313 31077
Intercompany bomowings 1,206 2872
Corporation tax pavable - =
156,339 238,076
SHARE CAPITAL
31 December 2021 31 December 2020

No LSS (i Mo. USE 000

Allotted, called up and fully

paid

Ordinary shares of USE1 each 25,000, B0 25,0000} 25,000,000 25000
Ordinary shares of €1 each 2 - 2 -

O 19 December 201 8, the company issued 25,000,000 ordinary shares of U831 at par to Goldman Sachs Asset
Management Intermational Holdings L.L.C., the inmnediate parent undertaking,

DIVIDENDS PAID
Year ended 31 Year ended
December 2021 31 December 2020
TISS" (ubi) LTSS 004
Interim dividends paid 7978 -
T.978

On 2 December 2021 the directors approved a dividend payment of $0.31912 per ordmary share totaling
57,978,044 (31 December 2020: LSS nil). This dividend waz paid to the immediate parent on 8 December 2021,

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The compary had no fnancil commitments or contmgencics outstanding at pertod end (31 December 2020:
TUEE nil).

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Since the balance sheet date, the Russian invasion of Ukraine in February 2022 has led to significant dismuption
in financial markeis and nereased uncertainty in the business envirenment in which the company operates. The
future impact of the war on the company s operational and fmancial performance remains difficolt to predict at
this time,

As the conflict in Ukraine is a non-adjusting event, its post vear end impact has not been taken into account in
the recognition and measurement of the comparny s assets or liabilities at 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The company monitors its capital on an ongoeing basiz. The company’s ohjective is to be prudently capitalized in
terms of the amount and composition of its equity base compared to the comparny s risk exposures. The
appropriate level and composition of its equity capital is determined by multiple factors meluding the company s

S8
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

15,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUEI)

current and future regulatery capital requirements, the results of the company s capital planning and other factors
cuch as the business environment in the Gnancial markets.

Durireg 2021, the company was in compliance with the capital requirements set by the Central Bank of Treland,

The directors consider that the mest important comp onents of the company s financial risk are market risk, credit
risk and Liquedity nisk. The company, as part of a global group, adheres o global risk management policies and
procedires.

a. Market Risk

Market risk isthe risk of loss i the value of the company®s financial assets and financial liabilities due to changes
in market conditions, Risks are monitored and controlled through strong fimmwide oversight and independent
control and support finctions across the company s business, Relevant market risks for the company are interest
rate risk and currency risk.

Interest pate risk results from exposures Lo changes in level, slope and curvature of vield curves, volatilities of
interest rates and credit spreads.

Currency risk results from changes in spot prices, forward prices and volatilities in currency rates.

The company manages its inferest rate and currency rigk as part of GS Group’s nsk managememt policy, by
establishing economic hedges as appropriate to the circumstances of the cormpary.

b, Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential for losz due to the default or deterioration in the credit quality of a
counterparty. Credit risk is managed by reviewing the credit quality of counterparties and reviewing, if applicable,
the undertying collateral against which the assets are secured. The company”s credit exposures are;

Cash at hank and in hand — Cash at bank and m hand include both nterest-bearing and non-intercst-bearmg
deposits, To mitigate the rigk of loss, the camparry places substantially all of its deposits with highly-rated banks,

Debtors — The company iz exposed to credit msk from its amounts due from customers and amourits due from
group indertakings. Fees from investment fimds are settled from the AUM of the fimd, for which the oredit risk
is considered minimal.

e, Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company does not have sufficient cash or collateral to make payments to fs
counterparties a= they fall due. The compamy manages its hguidity risk in accordance with G5 Group's
comprehensive and conservative set of liquidity and funding policies o address both company specific and
broader industry or market liguidity events.

16, FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

4. Financial assets and Grancial liabilities by category

Al financial assets are categorised as financial assets measured at mmortised cost inthe current and prior periods,
Al fimancial liabilities are categorised as financial liabilities measured al amortised cost in the current and prior
periods.

=)=
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

16, FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
h. Fair value of linandal assets and Anancial liabilities not measured at falr value
The company has US5215.3 million (31 Decernber 2020 US5290.8 mallion) of curvent financial assets and
LISE186. 1 million (31 December 2020 USE257.7 million) of current financial liabilities. all of which are not
micasured at fair value, Given the short-term nature of these mstruments, the camying amounts of the financial
assets and financial liabilities on the balance sheet are a reasonable appreximation of fair value,
c. Maturity of Onanclal liabilities

All financeal liabilities are due within one menth of the balance sheet date.

17. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2022,
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guarantee

https://www. 1aasa. ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-
a98202dc9c3a/Description__of _auditors__responsibilities_ for__audit.pdf

2014 391
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Independent auditors”™ report to the members of Goldman Sachs Asset Management
Fund Services Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Goldman Sachs Asset Management Fund Services Limited"s financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the company®s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31
December 2021 and of its profit for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in lreland
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial
Reporting Standard 101" Reduced Disclosure Framework” and lrish law); and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Report of Directors and Audited Financial
Statements, which comprise:

the Balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;
the Profit and loss account for the year then ended;
the Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lreland) (“ ISAs
(Ireland)” ) and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under 1SAs (lreland) are further described in the Auditors® responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in lreland, which includes 1AASA"s Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company®s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors® use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee
as to the company®s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Report of Directors and Audited Financial
Statements other than the financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The directors are
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to
perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Directors® Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the
Companies Act 2014 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs
(Ireland) and the Companies Act 2014 require us to also report certain opinions and matters as described
below:

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the
Directors”™ Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is consistent with the financial statements and
has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Based on our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors” Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors® responsibilities set out on page 4 and 5, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company®s ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors® report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (lreland) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances,
possibly using data auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of
items for testing, rather than testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular
items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling
to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
IAASA website at:

https://www. iaasa. ie/getmedia/bh2389013-1cf6-458h-9b8f-

298202dc9c3a/Description of auditors responsibilities for audit.pdf

This description forms part of our auditors® report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s members as a body
in accordance with section 391 of the Companies Act 2014 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.
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Other required reporting

Companies Act 2014 opinions on other matters

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the financial
statements to be readily and properly audited.

The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Other exception reporting
Directors” remuneration and transactions

Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of
directors” remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of that Act have not been made.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Jonathan 0"Connell

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin

25 March 2022
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